
 
MINUTES 

CITY OF NORCO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2820 CLARK AVENUE 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 11, 2015 

   

 
CALL TO ORDER:  7:00 PM     
 
ROLL CALL: Chair Leonard, Vice Chair Hoffman, Commission Members Hedges, 
Jaffarian and Rigler 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Planning Director King, Senior Planner Robles and Deputy City 
Clerk Germain 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Commission Member Jaffarian 
 
1. APPEAL NOTICE:   Read by Director King 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

 Minutes of Regular Meeting of, January 14, 2015 
Recommended Action: Approval (Deputy City Clerk)  

M/S Hedges/Rigler to approve the regular meeting minutes for January 14, 2015, as 
written 
AYES: Leonard, Hoffman, Hedges, Jaffarian, Rigler 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
A. Conditional Use Permit 2014-24 (Yandoc): A request for approval to allow 

the development of contractor’s construction office and storage building at 
633 Sixth Street (APN 133-150-027) located within the C-4 (Commercial) 
Zone. Recommended Action: Approval (Senior Planner) 

Senior Planner Robles presented the staff report on file in the Planning Department. 
She noted that the property owner has been working with staff to clear property of illegal 
structures. Based on input from the Architect Review Subcommittee (ARC) the siding 
has been replaced with masonic blocks. All minimum requirements are met. Staff 
recommends approval. 
 
In response to Member Rigler, Senior Planner Robles stated that the temporary storage 
unit being used for construction supplies, will be taken down upon completion of the 
project and prior to the final inspection, and that all products will be stored inside the 
proposed building.  
 



 
 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 2 
February 11, 2015 
 

 

Senior Planner Robles answered additional questions pertaining to conditions set within 
the Conditional Use Permit (CUP). 
 
Chair Leonard OPENED the public hearing, indicating that proper notification had 
been made and asked for the appearance of those wishing to speak.   
 
Ed Yandoc, applicant, answered questions from the Commission; the property was 
purchased in 2012.  
 
Karen Leonard stated that this is not the best business use for Sixth Street.  
 
Chair Leonard CLOSED the public hearing, bringing the discussion back to the 
Commission. 
 
Member Hedges asked about the hours of construction and operation, staff indicated 
that it is noted under Condition No. 27 and restrictions on sound amplification is noted 
under Condition No. 23.  
 
Chair Leonard suggested that the applicant remove the temporary building prior to 
permits being issued for the project, noting that as a contractor, the applicant should 
have known to apply for proper permits prior to bringing in temporary structures.  
 
Member Jaffarian asked staff about the existing building, in response, Senior Planner 
Robles confirmed that it is conditioned to be removed prior to finalizing the project. He 
suggested that an additional condition be added to require its removal after 
construction.   
 
Planning Director King suggested the verbiage read, “remove temporary structure within 
60-days or prior to issuance of Certificate of Occupancy”.  
 
M/S Jaffarian/Hedges to adopt Resolution 2015-07, to approve Conditional Use Permit 
2014-24, to allow the development of contractor’s construction office and storage 
building at 633 Sixth Street (APN 133-150-027) located within the C-4 (Commercial) 
Zone; adding the verbiage to indicate the removal of the temporary storage prior to 
finalizing building permit or 30 days after construction is completed.  
AYES: Hoffman, Hedges, Jaffarian, Rigler   Motion Passed 
NOES: Leonard 
 
Under discussion: Member Jaffarian indicated that this body cannot say what is not 
conducive to a zone if it is an allowed use by CUP. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 3 
February 11, 2015 
 

 

B. Conditional Use Permit 2014-36 (Anderson): A request for approval to 
allow a detached accessory building consisting of a 2,200 square-foot 
covered pole corral at 4444 Hillside Avenue located within the A-1-20 
(Agricultural Low Density) Zone. Recommended Action: Approval (Senior 
Planner) 

Chair Leonard has recused himself due to a potential conflict of interest. 
 
Senior Planner Robles presented the staff report on file in the Planning Department. 
She stated that the project was started prior to getting permits, a stop-order was issued 
until all is brought into compliance, for which this is the first step. Staff recommends 
approval. 
 
Member Jaffarian questioned the accuracy of Condition No. 9, since the applicant is in 
violation of regulations; Senior Planner Robles explained that this is the first step for the 
applicant to come into compliance.  
 
Director King further explained that if approved, the applicant will be granted to finish 
the project based on the conditions of approval.   
 
In response to Member Hedges, Senior Planner Robles stated that the Building 
Inspector verifies that all calculations of the structure are followed based on the 
approved plans, that Planning staff does not verify exact property line.  
 
Vice Chair Hoffman stated that the site plan does not appear accurate, questioned the 
lack of an engineering plan or the manufactures information on product being used.   
 
Vice Chair Hoffman OPENED the public hearing, indicating that proper 
notification had been made and asked for the appearance of those wishing to 
speak.   
 
Tammy Anderson, applicant, answered questions from the Commission, and 
confirmed that construction has stopped.  
 
In response to Vice Chair Hoffman, Senior Planner Robles stated that the applicant will 
be required to provide structural plans at the permit process.  
 
Karen Leonard questioned the sizing shown and the 22% coverage.  
 
Vice Chair Hoffman CLOSED the public hearing, bringing the discussion back to 
the Commission. 
 
After discussions, the Planning Commission agreed that the information provided within 
the plan was not accurate, and was unable to make a final decision for approval.  
 



 
 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 4 
February 11, 2015 
 

 

M/S Jaffarian/Hedges to continue to the next Planning Commission regular meeting to 
allow staff and applicant to validate the site plan calculations.  
AYES: Hoffman, Hedges, Jaffarian, Rigler   Motion Passed 
ABSTAIN: Leonard 
 

C. Conditional Use Permit 2014-35 (Anderson): A request for approval to 
allow two additional animal units at 4444 Hillside Avenue located within the A-
1-20 (Agricultural Low Density) Zone. Recommended Action: Approval 
(Senior Planner) 

Senior Planner Robles suggested that this item be also continued along with the 
corresponding CUP 2014-36; noting that this would not impact current horses on the 
property. 
 
 M/S Jaffarian/Hedges to continue the public hearing of CUP 2014-35 to the next 
Planning Commission regular meeting.  
AYES: Hoffman, Hedges, Jaffarian, Rigler   Motion Passed 
ABSTAIN: Leonard 
 

D. Conditional Use Permit 2014-37 (Dalfior): A request for approval to allow a 
detached accessory building consisting of a 1,260 square-foot garage and 
storage building at 3030 Norco Drive located within the A-1-20 (Agricultural 
Low Density) Zone. Recommended Action: Approval (Senior Planner) 

Senior Planner Robles presented the staff report on file in the Planning Department. 
She stated that the project was provided to the ARC for review; concerns noted on the 
architecture look, too industrial, asked for a more compatible look with the home. Senior 
Planner Robles added that some of the additional structures, which existed when the 
property was purchased, will be removed.  
 
Member Rigler stated that upon a drive by, he noticed that there doesn’t seem to be 
enough animal keeping area.  
 
In response to Member Hedges, Senior Planner Robles stated that a condition can be 
added to require the architecture be more conducive to the home.   
 
Chair Leonard OPENED the public hearing, indicating that proper notification had 
been made and asked for the appearance of those wishing to speak.   
 
Peggy Dalfior, applicant, confirmed that the architectural look will be changed to 
resemble the home; shared that the building will hold a chicken pen, with food and hay 
stored in the next room. She agreed to remove the additional buildings that are not to 
code.  
 
Chair Leonard CLOSED the public hearing, bringing the discussion back to the 
Commission. 
 



 
 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 5 
February 11, 2015 
 

 

Member Jaffarian asked that a condition be added to have the architecture plan sent 
back to the ARC for final review.  
 
Chair Leonard asked that Condition No. 13 be revised to include that the existing non-
permitted buildings be either brought to code with permits or removed.   
 
M/S Jaffarian/Rigler  to adopt Resolution 2015-05, to approve Conditional Use Permit 
2014-37, to allow a detached accessory building consisting of a 1, 260 square-foot 
garage and storage building located at 3030 Norco Drive; revising Condition 13 to read 
that non-permitted buildings be brought to code or be removed, and require a final 
architecture review by the ARC. 
AYES: Leonard, Hoffman, Hedges, Jaffarian, Rigler  Motion Passed 
 

E. Zone Code Amendment 2015-01(City): An amendment to Chapter 18.23 - 
C-4 (Commercial) Zone of the Norco Municipal Code, to add armories, 
weapon and ammunition sales, and weapon smithing as permitted uses.  
Recommended Action: Make Recommendation (Planning Director) 

Planning Director King presented the staff report on file in the Planning Department. 
This item is a follow-up to the Similar Use Finding previously approved by the Council, 
in which this allowed use can be added to the Norco Municipal Code.   
 
In response to Member Jaffarian, the Sheriff’s Department has no issues with this zone 
code amendment, and that the Fire Department does its verification during the permit 
process.  
 
Chair Leonard OPENED the public hearing, indicating that proper notification had 
been made and asked for the appearance of those wishing to speak.  With no one 
wishing to speak, Chair Leonard CLOSED the public hearing, bringing the 
discussion back to the Commission. 
 
M/S Jaffarian/Hoffman to adopt Resolution 2015-06, recommending that the City 
Council approve Zone Code Amendment 2015-01 amending Chapter 18.23 “C-4” 
(Commercial) zone, with any related cross-references in other chapters as needed to 
add armories, and gun and ammunition sales, and weapon smithing as permitted uses. 
AYES: Leonard, Hoffman, Hedges, Jaffarian, Rigler  Motion Passed 
 
Recessed:     8:09 PM 
 
Reconvened:  8:18 PM 
 
5. DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

 
A. Discussion of permitted lot coverage in the A-1-20 Zone and the Norco Ridge 

Ranch Specific Plan (NRRSP). Continued from January 14, 2015. 
Recommended Action: Discuss and provide direction (Planning Director) 



 
 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 6 
February 11, 2015 
 

 

Planning Director King presented the staff report on file in the Planning Department. He 
reiterated discussions from previous meetings, such as pools being included in lot 
coverage, revising the allowed lot coverage based on the lot size. In conclusion he 
asked the Planning Commission for additional direction.  
 
Member Jaffarian noted issues with hard paving coverage, potential risk of losing 
animal keeping areas. He asked staff if a tally could be provided showing the different 
sizes of lots, and how many of each size are in the City.  
 
Chair Leonard stated that he would like to see that lot coverages be set based on the 
different lot sizes; and suggested that there be 15-foot access to PAKAS.  
 
Director King stated that a 15-foot access to the animal keeping area may not be 
available on most A-1 zone lots that 10-foot is the standard.  
 
The Commission agreed about the importance of access to the animal keeping area, 
and that it be included in the lot coverage. 
 
Member Rigler stated that many lots are not standard, noting that the Commission 
needs to be flexible and consistent.  
 
Chair Leonard invited the public to speak. 
 
Lance Gregory stated that he does not agree that hard scape and pools should be 
included in the lot coverage, and encouraged the development of larger lots.  
  
Jodie Webber cautioned the Planning Commission to not take away the flexibility the 
commission desires, and restricting individuals’ rights as property owners. 
 
Mike Thompson agreed with the previous speakers, noting that the 40% coverage 
should remain. 
 
Chair Leonard brought discussions back to the Commission. 
 
Further discussions ensued concerning what areas should be included in the lot 
coverage; it was agreed that 40% lot coverage should stand, but that pools, concrete 
and patios be included in the lot coverage. 
 

B. Abandoned, unfinished projects Recommended Action: Discuss and 
provide Direction (Planning Director) 

Planning Director King presented the staff report on file in the Planning Department. He 
reviewed what is considered a nuisance based on the Norco Municipal Code. He stated 
that of the two properties in Norco that have sat unfinished for a long time, which have 
been sited; one has had its permits renewed.  
 



 
 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 7 
February 11, 2015 
 

 

In response to Member Hedges, Director King explained that a permit allows for up to 
two years to submit plans, and can be renewed indefinitely to extend it. He added that 
there are not provisions within the permit process to make the applicant finish the 
project in a timely manner.  
 
In response to Member Rigler, Member Jaffarian stated that bonds are generally 
required for public projects, such as schools, or work being done for the government.  
 
 

C. Zone code amendment to consider expanding animal-keeping rights to 
certain lots in the R-1 Zone that meet minimum qualifying requirements. 
Recommended Action: Discuss and provide direction (Planning Director) 

Planning Director King presented the staff report on file in the Planning Department. He 
asked for the consideration of additional lots in Norco that may meet all requirements to 
have an animal keeping area, such as the lot size, access to the trails, and being 
surrounded by other properties that are animal keeping area lots. Currently a property 
owner can request to keep animals through a variance.  
 
Chair Leonard invited the public to speak. 
 
Matthew Juback stated that he recently purchased a property off of Reservoir Drive, 
since it was bank owned there was no detail provided regarding its zoning, not allowing 
horses. His lot is 15,620 square feet which provides ample space for a horse. He 
thanked the Commission for its consideration. 
 
Chair Leonard brought discussions back to the Commission. 
 
Director King stated that based on City Council direction, this amendment is mainly to 
allow horses in the R-1 Zone, but that the Planning Commission can consider other 
animals.  
 
Member Rigler noted his concern with those who want to be around horses, and the 
impact on neighbors.  
 
Member Jaffarian stated that Norco is known as Horsetown USA, so residents should 
expect animals and horses. He suggested that specific guidelines be provided such as 
include a buffer around the property, and it should be permissive not restrictive. He 
suggested that the lot size should be used to determine the allowed number of animal 
units.  
 
Vice Chair Hoffman suggested that all type of animal units be included, questioned the 
access allowance. Director King will check on allowances previously set for other 
overlays. 
 



 
 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 8 
February 11, 2015 
 

 

D. Auto Sales & Services overlay in M-1 Zone (Industrial) Recommended 
Action: Discuss and provide direction (Planning Director) 

Planning Director King presented an oral report on the subject of an overlay zone in the  
M-1 Zone. He mentioned that the original intent of the M-1 Zone was to separate 
allowed uses; adding that Industrial Avenue, located behind the Auto Mall area contains 
a plethora of auto related uses. He asked for the Commission input regarding the 
potential overlay to allow the continued use on this street.  
 
Member Jaffarian stated that if restrictions are set, and restrict the use to inside 
buildings, as a commercial use, it makes sense to support other same type businesses. 
 
6. CITY COUNCIL MINUTES:     Received and Filed 

 
 City Council Regular Meeting of December 17, 2014 
 City Council Regular Meeting of January 21, 2015 

 
7. PLANNING COMMISSION: None 
 

A. Oral Reports from Various Committees: 
 Member Hedges stated that the final meeting of the Ad-Hoc Committee is 

scheduled in March in order to prepare the report that will be presented to the 
City Council. 
 

 Member Jaffarian noted that the Architectural Review Subcommittee has 
reviewed the drawings for Burger King, located at Hamner Avenue and Second 
Street, adding that th remodeling will look really good.  
 
B. Request for Items on Future Agenda (within the purview of the Commission) 

 None 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT: Chair Leonard adjourned the meeting at 10:22pm 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
___________________ 
Steve King, Secretary 
Planning Commission 
 
 
/di 


